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The Bosworth Store Building in Beverly, Randolph County, West Virginia, presently
consists of two distinct elements: the original, c. 1828, portion of the building to
the south and an 1894 addition to the north. The older section was built on a cut-stone
foundation which provided a low basement under the entire structure. Of two-story
brick construction, it was made so as to allow a great deal of natural light into the
store from the south and east (front) elevations. The south has four windows on each
floor while the east now has two on the first floor and three on the second. The rear
portion has only one window (on the north side of the second floor), and the north
elevation (now enclosed) has two toward the rear of the first floor. Most windows are
presently 2/2, double~hung sash, but the originals (and replacements of the last several
years) were 9/6., This section has a gabled roof with a metal covering. It is completed
in Flemish bond on the front and south and common bond on the rear (west) and north.
There is-a high brick chimney in the back portion of the north side, and this houses two
fireplaces on each level. '

The 1894 addition is on a. cut~stone foundation also, but there is no basement. The
front is such that only the section enclosing the stairwell is flush with the older unit,
the rest being set back several feet. Door placement provides a rear, side and front
entrance, and there are three windows on the rear, four on the side and four on the
front. Side and rear windows are all 2/2, double~hung sash, while those in the front of
the part set back from the street are dual 1/1 with a 2/2 in the second floor of the
stairwell and a small diamond-shaped window on the first floor.  Except for the diamond-
shaped opening, all doors and windows are arched and have stone sills, The roof gives
a flat appearance, but it slopes gently to the rear. Brick on the front is of a finer
quality than elsewhere and is laid in a stretcher bond while the other elevations are
common. ,

The interior of the older section is as originally designed on the first floor--a
large open room in the front and a small room to the rear--but the second floor has been
partitioned at various times to form new arrangements. There are now three rooms and
bath on the second level. Both plumbing and electricity have been added in the twentieth
century. The 1894 portion has two rooms downstairs and two up.

Until the 1894 section was added, the older part had a stair to the second floor
on the exterior of the north elevation. Frame outbuildings, probably used for storage
purposes, were located to the rear, and a lean-to was attached to the back of the
building for some time. The main entrance to the store was through a central door at
the front which had a rectangular transom. This opening was repeated on the second
floor with a door-through which stored materials could be placed or removed. It is
believed tRat the original roof was partially destroyed during high winds in the latter
half of the nineteenth century, and this is substantiated in part by the difference in
the color of the brick on both gables. First-floor windows were shuttered at one time.
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The Bosworth Store Building is mainly significant in its nearly 100 years of use
as a general commercial unit in a small community which served as the center of a wide-
spread and diverse area of Virginia and West Virginia. Adding to its importance was
short-term use as county courthouse, post office and semi~official meeting place. Its
owners were among the leaders of the community, and their services reached far beyond
the provision of commercial goods.

Probably constructed soon after David Blackman purchased the town lot in 1827,
the store building was the first commercial brick structure in Beverly and one of the
earliest in its part of Virginia. When Blackman married in 1824, his wife's father
gave the couple several slaves. Although it is said David did not believe in slavery,
he apparently retained these and used their labor in burning bricks and building his
storehouse.

' Of significance is the fact that the building served its initial purpose for about
a century, passing from the Blackman family to a fellow named Barlow and coming into
the possession of Squire Newton Bosworth in 1881, The latter operated the store into
the twentieth century; it finally closed its doors as a commercial enterprise and was

" devoted entirely to storage in the late 1920s.

‘ As a general merchandise outlet, the store handled all types of goods, from grains
to materials to household furnishings. Farmers and craftsmen from the outlying area,
as. well as Beverly, congregated at this centrally located building--across the main
street from the town square and nearby courthouse-~thus making it one of the social
attractions and communication center. In fact, a newspaper was published here for a
time, and stories tell of people gathering around the front or in the interior to pass
news of births, deaths, farming, politics and the weather.

During the Civil War, the little town of Beverly was frequented by Union and Con-
federate troops alike, and the old storehouse saw its share of the military. Townsfolk
had used its underground "vault" for years to protect valuables (a practice which would
continue after the war). This was located in the basement under the small back room of
the store. The only entrance was through a trap door in the floor, for the entire area
was sealed below ground. This "bank" became particularly important as troops passed
through or encamped. Several items of the Civil War period have been discovered in the
interior, including bayonets and bullets, and names of soldlers were found scrawled on
some of the walls on the first floor.

Among other uses, the building apparently was the temporary seat of county govern-
ment during a portion of 1865, and S.N. Bosworth operated the post office here for a
few years., When controversy arose over moving the county seat to Elkins in the late
nineteenth century, this is said to have been the meeting place of area residents opposed
to the move. It is even told that a group congregated in the structure and planned to
" de physical harm to anyone who attempted to remove court records from the nearby county

building.
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8. SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

The first owner, David Blackman, was a land- and horse-trader as well as merchant.
He also helped in the comstruction of the Staunton-Parkersburg Turnpike through the
area, subscribing $200 for the purpose in 1840. Another owner, Squire Newton Bosworth,
was the son of a well-known area doctor, and his father and his wife's father both
served for a period as county clerks. Bosworth was a member of the 31lst Virginia
Infantry (Confederate) during the Civil War.

Since closing as a store, the structure has been used for a variety of purposes.
One of these was as a recreational center for the National Youth Administration during
the 1930s. 1In 1973 the Randolph County Historical Society purchased the property, and
it now serves as a meeting place and museum. ’
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